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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact sections 43-17-44 and 43-17-45 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to the practice of telemedicine; and to amend and reenact subsection 
3 of section 26.1-14-02 and sections 43-17-01 and 43-17-02.3 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, relating to the definitions of the practice of medicine and telemedicine and the practice 
of medicine. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments: 1-7 

 
Chairman Lee: Called the hearing to order on SB 2094.  
 
(0.00-9:00) Bonnie Storbakken: Testified in support of SB 2094. See attachments 1-2.  
 
Senator Anderson: In regards to the letter from the State Medical Board, it mirrors your law 
of which says you have to have that video that is comparable to the evaluation. What some 
people are telling us is that we are the only state that is adopting that policy. Do you have 
any numbers about what other states have done relative to that?  
 
Bonnie Storbakken: I do not have the exact numbers of who is doing what. What I can tell 
you is that I think it’s about 39 states that require a patient licensee relationship. How they all 
define hoe that can come about is different. That is why we look to the model. I can tell you 
that as far as the requirement of a parent licensee relationship, I think that is pretty broad. 
How they define that, I do not know. Minnesota, Montana, and South Dakota do not have 
any special previsions for telemedicine. They don’t have any special language to define it. I 
have spoken with our counterparts and with their responses, we are not sure if that is better 
or worse. So, when we get a complaint, we have to try to fit it in under our current rule 
structure. Under what we have in rule, that is what we would have to do. We would have to 
find how we can do that and the disadvantage of that is that we are not able to provide clear 
direction to our licensees and when it comes time to review some of those complaints, it is 
extra work. We may not have the best tools and our board really believes that this bill has 
the tools that would help clear that up.  
 
Senator Anderson: How do you anticipate that your board is going to govern that practice 
idea that you brought forward? 
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Bonnie Storbakken: Currently, when a complaint comes in and we see somebody who is a 
neurologist that has treated someone for internal stuff, it is far outside of where their training 
is and our board has the ability to say something. We have to look at it so see if it is 
negligence. We have looked at similar complaints with specialists who go outside of their 
specialty and bad results happen which leads to complaints coming to us. I think that was a 
reiteration of what we already do.  
 
Senator Hogan: Do we have any idea what the volume of telemedicine is in North Dakota 
and how much is being practiced today? 
 
Bonnie Storbakken: I don’t have an answer for that. I think some others here might know 
more than me about that.  
 
Senator Roers: I noticed there is some language where you switch from “licensee” to 
“practitioner”. Was that an intentional move? Because I don’t see “practitioner” being defined. 
 
Bonnie Storbakken: I have had to redo the language. 
 
Senator Roers: Do you feel that having them strictly within this section could limit the scope 
of who could do telemedicine or will those groups also need to define it in their section? I just 
worry that now we are going to create 5 times the code than maybe putting it in a larger 
section that could apply to a larger group.  
 
Bonnie Storbakken: One of the major statements in opposition to this bill is the lack of 
broadness in the State of North Dakota. I have included materials in my testimony for you 
about that topic.  
 
Chairman Lee: Enable us on what your further attachments are please. 
 
Bonnie Storbakken: I have given you a current rule. The historical documents are the 
packets that were submitted to the administrative rules committee. After that, I have provided 
copies of other law such as the parody law for payment regarding telehealth, the medical 
marijuana law where it talks about the glorified patient provider relationship, and the model 
policy from the AMA and the FSMB. I have given you some recent emails that I have received 
as well.  
 
Chairman Lee: Who would like to testify next for SB 2094? 
 
(18:40-23:45) Brenda Miller, Member, Board of Medicine and Licensed Physician: 
Testified in support of SB 2094. See Attachment #3. 
 
Senator Clemens: When you have a new patient before you go to something that is not 
visual, does that occur after the patient has told you that they are comfortable meeting with 
you? How long does that usually take?  
 
Brenda Miller: I think it depends on the nature of the visit but patients usually pick me and I 
hope they would feel comfortable with my recommendations from people in the community. 
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To answer your question, I would say it is right away for the most part. If they didn’t, they 
probably wouldn’t be back.  
(24:50) Chairman Lee: Part of the problem for a lot of patients is the specialty areas. 
Sometimes its 4-5 months before they can get in. Because they don’t want to wait that long, 
they will try to figure out some other way to get it to someone. I am not saying it is a goof 
judgement call, medically. Every place has challenges recruiting and we all know it is 
challenging in the state of North Dakota, especially in rural areas. I think we have to make 
sure services available to the people are going to be appropriately guided in a good way so 
they are going to get good treatment.  
 
Brenda Miller: We have the opportunity in our clinic to have video visits. They can call in 
from anywhere with any device. I realize some people don’t have the technology but I think 
a lot of the specialty cases are important to have the video feed option. My son in 
interventional radiology. His patients come from all over the state and even Montana and for 
them to be able to follow up with him over video and have some nurse from where they are 
check their pulse, that would be invaluable to those patients. So those are some things that 
are falling under the telemedicine that go well within what we are discussing.  
 
Chairman Lee: The importance to be able to follow up is so great, regardless of where they 
are at; especially with chronic disease.  
 
Brenda Miller: I work for Sanford and I have been so blessed with such a supportive system. 
We have a chronic disease management team. After we have established that relationship 
either in person or over video.  
 
Chairman Lee: The gadgets that are available to read blood sugar and able to monitor their 
own responses are incredible. That way people are able to monitor their own situations. I 
love the electronic communication options as well. If I have a question, I can just send it. I 
don’t have to wait for someone to call.  
 
Brenda Miller: It has made my life easier as well because it is easier for doctors to send and 
receive emails.  
 
Chairman Lee: Who would like to testify in favor of this bill next? 
 
(29:16-36:14) Darin Willardson: I have been practicing telemedicine for 4 years. I have seen 
over 7,000 patients. Most of them have been over the phone and telemedicine visits. There 
are a few things I would like to bring to your attention where the intent might be good but you 
might be limiting some of the aspects of what telehealth will be becoming in the future. I 
practice currently in MN but we are branching to different state and one that I would love to 
branch to is ND. One of the things I will bring up is when we practice hospital medicine, we 
would get calls from hospitals with 25 beds or less asking if they would come over to the 
hospital. We would go and we would jokingly call it “dozing for dollars”. Unfortunately, they 
aren’t very busy so we would go there and sleep for 12 hours. We said that there has got to 
be a better way to do this and for me to go cover a hospital and have only one admit, is not 
very efficient. We came up with the tele hospitalist model. What we do now is we have 
hospitalists that cover multiple hospitals at the same time. We make these carts and place 
them in many different hospitals which allows me to sit in one spot while covering 4-5 different 
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hospitals at one time. When a patient come in, they can see a person who practices in a 
higher bed number hospital and they do not have to be transferred out of their small town 
hospital to receive the proper care. This has been shown to be very valuable. The smaller 
hospitals love it and so do the patients. One of the things that I see in this bill that is going to 
be restrictive for that is if you go to page 4, we prescribe controlled substance I the inpatient 
setting. This does not carve out in patient setting so it someone come in and needs their gall 
bladder removed and it is 2 AM, the patient would probably like some pain medicine until the 
surgeon can get there at 6 AM. What I would like to ask of the members here is that if you 
could add on line 21 where it says you can’t provide opioids, please add to the end of the 
sentence, “with the exception of a hospitalized individual or nursing home resident”. In a 
controlled environment, like that, with the proper telehealth equipment, it would be just fine 
to use opioids in this case. I agree that it should be for outpatient. This bill is great but I still 
believe there are some things that would limit what we can do, unintentionally. This would be 
one of them. The other things are, when a patient comes to me, most patients prefer where 
they don’t do a video especially if they are at work. They want to be private. The software I 
use clarifies the patient. They can’t impersonate someone else. Once that happens, then 
when you get on the site, you have to go through a third party to verify that it is you by 
answering various questions. It would be difficult to craft bills like this because what you are 
going to want to do is limit providers that use any kind of email or anything to do this. But 
those of us who use a very safe and robust software to do this, should be allowed to. When 
I do a visit, they know exactly who they are visiting with and I know exactly who I am treating. 
If I give a prescription, it goes to the pharmacy where it is again verified. I think this intent of 
this bill is good but I think you are about to limit North Dakota to something that other states 
are not limiting.   
 
Chairman Lee: That is why we meet every 2 years to update these things. Can you provide 
the remarks that you just made?  
 
Darin Willardson: Absolutely. 
 
Senator Hogan: Are there national standards that you have to comply with or is there an 
infrastructure with a primary way of providing the service? It is a new form of medicine, so do 
you have the national standards and the boards for it?  
 
Darin Willardson: That is what we are addressing now. There are no national standards for 
this and that is what the scary part of all this is. Those that are practicing responsibly, are 
cringing when we see stuff that limits what we can do, not because we are doing something 
wrong, but because other people are doing something wrong. I think it would be better to 
write bills that say you have to have an accredited software that identifies the patient and the 
provider to each other instead of just saying, “you can’t do that”.  
 
Chairman Lee: We want to prevent abuses that are happening out there. 
 
Darin Willardson: That is why we have to be careful on how we craft this. Most of this bill is 
great but I think the inpatient side was sort of forgot about in the part where it is a very 
controlled environment and that is why I asked for that exception.  
 
Senator Hogan: Who accredits your software and are there very many of them?  
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Darin Willardson: It is up to the individual people providing this software to make sure their 
software is robust. There are no national standards.  
 
(39:40-41:17) Marnie Walth: See Attachment #4 for the Testimony in favor of SB 2094. 
 
Senator Anderson: You don’t see the video as a way to establish your relationship as a 
barrier that you can’t overcome, do you?  
 
Marnie Walth: We do not see that as a barrier. We support that requirement.  
 
Senator Hogan: Do you have feedback for opioid prescription for inpatient telemedicine? 
 
Marnie Walth: That is a good question and I would have to take it back to my office. 
 
Chairman Lee: Next in favor of the bill please come up.  
 
(42:00) Donna Thronson: Testified in support of SB 2094. See Attachment #5 for 
Testimony.  
 
Senator Anderson: Already in North Dakota law, we have confrontation with another 
medical provider that can always be provided. You don’t have to have an ND license. We 
can take a closer look at that and see. 
 
(46:09-46:32) Melisaa Hauer: Testifies in support of SB 2094. See attachment #6 for 
testimony. We support the bill and we think it strikes the right balance between patient safety 
and using the technology that is coming along to help patient access, especially in rural 
areas.  
 
Senator Roers: Where does the hospital stand on the opioid exception for inpatient and long 
term care? 
 
Melissa Hauer: I do not know, but I will go back and check as well.  
 
(47:22) Todd Savernak: Testified in favor of the bill. I practice both telemedicine and 
inpatient hospital medicine and similar to Dr. Willardson, I would like to speak that looking 
from a patient care standpoint, that limiting the opioids and inpatient care setting is very 
limiting and will result in less care. That is limiting the small hospitals that we are trying to 
support. I strongly support inpatient settings and want to make sure that that carve out is 
made. It is clearly a different setting.  
 
Chairman Lee: Any further testimony in favor of the bill? Hearing none, are there any 
opposition testimonies to the bill? Hearing none, we will close the hearing on SB 2094.  
 
Further testimony was emailed in support of an amendment to SB 2094 from Dr. Mary 
Ann Sens. See attachment #7.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to the definitions of the practice of medicine and telemedicine and the practice of 
medicine. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
(03:22) Senator K. Roers: I just kind of want to remember where we were at. Have we 
already made the amendment on the prescribing piece? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: I have no amendments. We have an amendment that was proposed 
about the 24 hours to 7 days, and of course the discussion on whether “video” should be in 
there or not and “with the exception of hospitalized patients or nursing homes” that one I think 
there wasn’t any debate about.  
 
Senator Hogan: Do you want to consider the opioids may not be prescribed through 
telehealth with the exception of patients in hospital or long term care? We actually have a 
written amendment.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Who presented it? 
 
Senator K. Roers: We just had it typed up. I believed that the 7 day amendment, Senator 
Anderson found that there was an exception in another part of law that negated the need for 
that amendment.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I remember you talking about this, but we didn’t have a conclusion.  
 
Senator Hogan: Pam Sagness just shared that medication assisted treatment is using 
telehealth and that she is working on an amendment to assure that is still covered. Could you 
get us an amendment because I don’t think we had formal discussion on that? 
 
Senator Anderson: As long as we are talking about SB 2094, one option to solve the 
questions that people have about the term “a video”. What I am looking at is the possibility 
that we might look at the definition on page 2 line 14 & 15. In place of the word “a video” we 
will say that “a direct interactive patient encounter, asynchronous store-and-forward 
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technology or remote monitoring examination utilizing appropriate….” Then just continue 
from there. Pull the words from the definition and replace “video” and I think that they can 
accomplish the same thing the board is looking to do using that definition then pull out the “a 
video”. I haven’t seen Jack McDonalds definition of asynchronous store-and-forward 
technology; did you get that yet? 
 
Senator K. Roers: No.  
 
Senator Anderson: When we finally work on that bill I think I’d like you to mull that over and 
maybe see if that will work.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We have at least four that we would like to include.  
 
Senator K. Roers: We had someone who just got here for SB 2030 can we just submit the 
written testimony for the record?  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We can allow you Kurt to tell us about it if you would like.  
 
(09:13) Madam Chair Lee and the Senate Human Services Committee moves on to hear 
testimony on SB 2030. 
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Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
Pam Sagness: Relating to the telehealth amendment that was offered regarding opioids, so 
I didn’t draft this as a full amendment because it would be a change to an already proposed 
amendment so instead I offer just language that you can have. It’s the language that mirrors 
what the board of medicine adopted, specific to telemedicine and the prescribing of opioids. 
Id like to just read the sentence and if you would like to include that in your already proposed 
amendment than you could just use the language. “Opioids may only be prescribed through 
a telemedicine encounter if they are done so as an FDA approved medication assisted 
treatment or MAT for opioid use disorder. Opioids may not be prescribed through a 
telemedicine encounter for any other purpose.” That is the language for everyone to be aware 
of through the board of medicine. What we would want to do is just focus on that FDA 
approved medication so that if it is only for nursing homes or certain areas we don’t also take 
away the opportunity for opioid treatment programs for providing treatment. As Senator 
Anderson said there’s incredible oversight for this program, so there is a lot of work around 
reducing diversion.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: If you could get a copy to Justin (Committee Clerk).   
 
Pam Sagness: Yes, I have already sent you the language in an e-mail, so I can send it to 
Justin. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Ok, that would be wonderful. We will be chatting about this sometime 
this afternoon so in case your around you may be able to sit in. Anything further? 
 
Madam Chair Lee closes the discussion on SB 2094 
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John Ward, Attorney, representing Teladoc.  
 
John Ward: I do have an amendment, I have e-mailed a copy to Senator Anderson and gave 
one to Senator Hogan shortly before this committee work here so I could hand this out. If the 
intern would like a copy as a word document, we can do send that over. Essentially what that 
amendment would do, would include the asynchronous store-and-forward language in 
addition to the video component of it. It also kind of lays out what some of those additional 
requirements at the initiation stage could look like. This proposed amendment sort of 
originates the way the Texas statute is written and is similar in several other states. I think 
there was some confusion at the original hearing with respect to the statement made by the 
Federation of State Medical Boards to this committee specifically referring to that there are 
17 or so states that have language along the lines of the bill that’s proposed by the board of 
medicine and I think that’s absolutely correct. The distinction that we were getting at was that 
to our knowledge there are two states that have the video only requirement and those states 
are Delaware and Arkansas. The difference would the 17 states would have the video and 
the store-and-forward technology language in there.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The others have both is what you’re telling us? 
 
John Ward: Yes, that is correct.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: So if I’m going to value up and you’re my provider. Tell me, I have a belly 
ache, tell me what you are going to be using asynchronous store-and-forward technology in 
conjunction with synchronous audio interaction between the practitioner and the patient in 
another location.  
 
John Ward: I’m not a physician so I can’t answer any of the diagnostic questions, but the 
way that I understand it is the asynchronous store-and-forward technology essentially what 
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asynchronous means not at the same time and the synchronous means like in a video or 
audio conversation between the physician and the patient that’s synchronous. The 
asynchronous component to that would be any additional data. As this amendment is written 
it would have “could include clinically relevant photographic or video images” so if the patient 
were to upload through the telemedicine platform beforehand some high resolution 
photographs or if they have a video that they have uploaded which could also include 
diagnostic images or the patient’s relevant medical records such as their medical history, 
laboratory and pathology results, and any prescriptive histories. Senator K. Roers did point 
out that prescriptive is actually spelled wrong so we need to put a “p” in there. So that would 
sort of be the distinction, so that it’s clear that what we are talking about here is not just a 
telephone call that it’s a telephone call plus the additional information in their discretion would 
deem necessary to formulate a diagnosis. Certainly, this is not going to be perfect in every 
instance. I think there is a huge body of medical practice that’s probably not even appropriate 
in telemedicine. Yesterday I attended a committee work there was an either a cardiologist or 
a cardiothoracic surgeon that was here.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Yes, the Dean of the Medical School.  
 
John Ward: I think he indicated that certainly his area of practice that he can’t really do what 
he does in a telemedicine visit but that he believes in certain circumstances that it was 
appropriate and Senator Hogan and I had a chance to talk briefly about this and she had 
caught him out in the hall after and he had said that he thought that maybe in 5-10% of 
medicine that you could utilize this store-and-forward technology and the synchronous audio 
component of that as well in treating. That may not seem like a lot but if you consider if there 
were 100,000 telemedicine visits to a current state, if you are talking about 5,000-10,000 of 
them that’s a pretty significant amount. If this is an additional tool that’s available to a 
practitioner and their license they are practicing within the standard of care and they are 
using their discretion, they believe they have enough information that’s available to them to 
treat this individual then they can. Otherwise I think will become appropriate and probably 
many telemedicine encounters if it’s something that they can’t do through telemedicine then 
they can refer their patient to a traditional in person visit.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I don’t have problem with physician referrals to telemedicine. I think 
telemedicine is great and in fact I had a meeting with a Fargo area doctor over the weekend 
and he just said all docs are going to be replaced by algorithms anyways so it’s not going to 
matter soon. The point is my concern is more that some person sitting in their kitchen in their 
pajamas will be much more interested not putting on a real pair of pants and going to see a 
same day clinic provider or something like that. The psychiatrist actually talked a little about 
that, that it would not be really good for her practice but my concern is if we aren’t a little bit 
prescriptive in the way were asking for these things to be implemented if something is going 
to be missed in the interest of expediency, not necessarily for the physician so much as that 
the patient is saying when I have time I can just send an e-mail and there will be other things 
that the provider isn’t going to see because they can’t see the person. That’s where I’m 
coming from its not that the doctors aren’t qualified and capable and interested in doing the 
right thing. My concern is that someone has an initial contact with a medical provider is going 
to not be seen by that person in some way and all the other symptoms that a doctor or nurse 
practitioner can recognize when seeing the person even with one video view, that’s 
important. It isn’t that I’m trying to fight the idea we are going to have telehealth available 
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here that’s not it at all, we just need to figure out a way that makes it safe and appropriate for 
the patient and the provider.  
 
Madam Chair and the Senate Human Services Committee end discussion on SB 2094 
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for tele-pharmacy. The dean said I think we should stick with video, and I was just about to 
go the other way but we did stick with video and it became the standard for the whole country 
now every tele-pharmacy in the whole country uses our model. These software companies 
that wanted to get by without the video now have video even on the dispensing machine that 
they might have in the hospital they have a video component so you can call up the 
pharmacist and talk to them show them what you need. Even in the hospital where the nurse 
is there, we require the video and that way if the nurse wants to show the pharmacist what 
she actually picked up to use on this patient she can do that or if the practitioner wants to 
consult with the pharmacist and they can show the products they intend to use and so forth. 
It became the standard because we said we were going to stick with that and that’s just an 
example of how you can be the leader in something if you stick with what you think is the 
best way to do it.  
 
Senator Hogan: I read the letters that Bonnie Storbakken introduced from all of the positions 
I think that medical visual evaluation and it’s only the first time and the people who seem to 
oppose it where mostly out of state groups who are doing contract work. It’s very interesting 
to me that the local people seem to be pretty committed to the video standard.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The psychiatrist (Dr. Gabriela Balf-Soran), she was very influential in 
my thinking. 
 
Senator K. Roers: They have a separate set of standards is what I understood from her and 
they have a higher level of standard do to the difference in their care. I’m doing a little 
research here, the Center for Connective Health Policy is who defines what asynchronous 
store-and-forward is. Synchronous would mean we are talking in real time, asynchronous 
just means we are not talking in real time, and the store-and-forward is the ability for the 
practitioner to be able to review the data they respond. It sounds like its non-real time but I 
believe when they use this asynchronous store-and-forward its building in the robustness 
around maybe some of the privacy pieces of it rather the actual technology of it.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: If I can expound on the story with Senator Anderson with the companies 
and groups that I run, I run an enrollment platform and the one particular platform when I 
have over 1,500 lives on it I offer a video conference when somebody enrolls so they can get 
online if they don’t understand to pick their product but if there's any confusion at all they can 
click the button and I have 16 agents in Omaha and one of them will come up and it will be 
a live interaction and they will walk them through the whole process of enrollment and answer 
any questions. I don’t believe its recorded, but to me it seems like a great selling tool in my 
industry that people want to be at ease and have that communication back and forth as 
compared to the enrollment platform that I have that is with 500 lives or less which is purely 
a portal where you select your product, watch a video or two, but there is no physical agent 
that will come on board and just walk you through it on the computer. So I see where they 
are coming from. I was also wondering though when they said on that line if they said “an” if 
they could use it or not, I can’t remember the page number but they said if we replaced 
“video” with “an” and then Senator Andersons definition in that other section the psychologist 
could the video if they so choose and somebody else could use their way if they wanted to.  
 
Senator Anderson: I’m comfortable with these two amendments we have and just go ahead 
and approve it with the video.  
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Relating to the definitions of the practice of medicine and telemedicine and the practice of 
medicine. 
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Madam Chair Lee: SB 2094 is all of that stuff from the hospitals association ready? 
 
Senator Anderson: We already have a provision when there is another practitioner is 
present the consultation can be performed by any other doctor it doesn’t even have to be a 
ND licensed physician the consultation can be performed so I think she assuming that 
needed to be included in this but I really don’t think so.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I think your probably right.  
 
Senator Anderson: Are we holding that open because the other side hadn’t had a chance 
to get here yet? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Yes, we are holding it open for Monday afternoon, im just trying to catch 
up here. Doctor (inaudible) had some concerns and so he was the one who wanted to say 
“with the exception of hospitalized patients” which we just now got. We will hear the rest of 
SB 2094 on Monday afternoon.  
 
Ends discussion on SB 2094. 
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Madam Chair Lee: If we look at SB 2094 we have page 2 line 31, changing 24 hours to 7 
days and page 3 line 23, “a video examination” will be replaced with “an examination” and 
then we move after “utilizing” we would then add “secure video conferencing or store-and-
forward technology”.   
 
Senator Hogan: Does long term care facility include basic care or is it just skilled care? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Well, that’s the only reason why I stopped talking is because maybe long 
term care may suggest DD facilities because it should.  
 
Senator Hogan: Should it be skilled care? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Or do we want DD facilities included? 
 
Senator Hogan: I think that’s a really interesting question that we haven’t really talked about.  
 
Senator Anderson: I think that we would consider when we say long term care we mean 
basic and skilled in North Dakota, and the key there is that there's a nurse in the basic care 
facility helping the patients administer their medication whereas assisted living facilities they 
are taking care of themselves and administering their own. In the basic care facility there 
shouldn’t be the risk of diversion by others and so forth. I don’t think you need to restrict it; I 
think basic care would be included.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The thing with assisted living is that it isn’t even regulated the same way, 
it’s a residential model and not a medical model and so I agree with Senator Anderson.  
 
Senator Anderson: I would suggest that maybe before we act on it that we run it by the 
medical board. 
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Madam Chair Lee: I just wanted us to have a chance to talk about it and they can add 
anything.  
 
Madam Chair Lee and the Senate Human Services Committee move on to discuss SB 
2154. 
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medicine. 
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(00:30) Bonnie Storbakken, Executive Secretary for the State Board of Medicine: The 
first amendment was on line 31 page 2, and that was to strike “24 hours” and add “7 days”. 
Our board was actually able to discuss that at the last meeting and they are in favor of that. 
The second amendment on page 3 to strike “video”. I wasn’t able to discuss these 
amendments with our board, our board doesn’t meet until Friday and I have been trying to 
get a quorum and that is the soonest I can get them assembled. I can’t say that we would 
support this language, I can say that this was the bone of contention for a long time and our 
board was very committed to this language even though, it is in excess of what the model 
language of the FSMB (Federal State of Medical Boards) and the AMA (American 
Management Association) states. I would say that I understand where Senator Anderson is 
coming from with these amendments and its basis. I think it is accurately within what the 
FSMB and the AMA is saying, our board is more conservative is what I would say.  
 
Senator Anderson: The other amendment is to add opioids in long term care and so forth.  
 
Bonnie Storbakken: That one our board was able to review and they stood in favor of that.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: And also about the patients in hospitals or long term care facilities.  
 
Bonnie Storbakken: Yes.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: So the only one that you really don’t have consensus on would be the 
“video”. 
 
Senator K. Roers: Can I argue that this process is not over when we pass it and that if they 
do have that strong of an objection there is still another chamber.  
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Madam Chair Lee: Any other questions for Mrs. Storbakken? If not, thank you very much. 
Any quick discussion before we move onto the next one? 
 
Senator K. Roers: Can we move on it? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: We can if you wish.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I move to ADOPT AMENDMENTS as just discussed.  
Seconded by Senator Hogan  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Discussion on the amendments? 
 
Senator Anderson: I proposed that amendment as a possible alternative for consideration 
by the Board of Medicine. I’m not sure if the Board of Medicine doesn’t want the amendment 
in that form that I would support it. I am sensitive to what we can accomplish on the other 
side and if we want a clear definition of Telemedicine I know that there are members who are 
on the administrative rules committee that had the rule held up for this various issue and 
they’re a little more adamant in the house. It might get changed over there regardless of what 
we do.  
 
Senator K. Roers: Where I struggle with the original language is that the law is to set the 
floor. This is not necessarily to define the ideal. I struggle with making it too tight. We had 
multiple people come and testify and say that this is not the standard across the U.S., this is 
far more stringent and it doesn’t mean that we don’t want to do something more stringent but 
I also want to make sure that we don’t make it so tight that we aren’t able to be flexible as life 
and technology changes.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The other thing I would mention about the administrative rules committee 
is that my understanding is that they wouldn’t support it, and I don’t have anything in writing 
about this but, rather that they thought this was a legislative decision of discussion and that’s 
why it needed to be here. It isn’t that they were for or against, they thought that it was not 
their place and I appreciate them recognizing that there was a reason for legislative 
discussion.  
 
Senator Hogan: The question is; the urgency to get a bill moved out versus having to do a 
conference committee in two months which is a time concern too, so perhaps we should hold 
this until we hear on Monday, and at least we know what we are doing.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: If they don’t like it, then what? 
 
Senator Hogan: If they don’t like it, then we make the decision based on the policy issue.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: It’s up to the committee. We have an amendment before us which has 
been seconded.  
 
Senator K. Roers: So are there any feelings of tabling the amendment? 
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Madam Chair Lee: We can even approve the amendments and leave the votes until 
Monday, but I realize this is Tuesday and we would be delaying this a whole week.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: For clarification on line 23 page 3 that would have left out and the other 
three amendments would. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: No, what we would have is on page 3 line 23 it would say the word “video 
examination” would be removed but it would be replaced by “an examination” and then it 
would be utilizing “secure video conferencing or store-and-forward technology”. 
 
Senator O. Larsen: So page 2 line 31 we are leaving out.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We aren’t leaving out anything 
 
Senator K. Roers: I’m only seeing three not four.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: There are four on this dummy amendment. Two of them have to deal 
with the same sentences. One line says we are removing the next line says we are adding, 
so we have three places where there are changes we have four lines on the dummy 
amendment that are describing what those changes are.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: I like that.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Any discussion on the amendment? If not, please call the roll. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN 
5 YEA, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES TO ADOPT AMENDMENTS  
 
Madam Chair Lee: If you would prefer having that amendment in place to wait until Monday 
to vote on it that’s ok but, that is six days from now that is all I am saying.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: I move a DO PASS, AS AMENDED.  
Seconded by Senator Clemens 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Any discussion on the amended motion? If not, please call the roll.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN  
6 YEA, 0 NAY, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES DO PASS, AS AMENDED.  
 
Madam Chair Lee closes the discussion on SB 2094 and moves on to SB 2333. 
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